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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS
ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report an the Audit of the Financinl Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT
SERVICES COMPANY (the "Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December

2019, and the statements of comprehensive incame, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including & summary of significant accounting palicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present firly, in all material respeots, the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2019 and its financial performeance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordanes with Infermational Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted sur audit in accordarce with [nternational Standards on Auditing (F1SAs™) that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Awbia. Our responsibilitics under those standards are further desoribied in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial siatements section af our report, We are independent of the Company
in secordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that
are relevant 1o our audit of the financinl stmements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitias in
accardance with these requirements. We believe that the audit svidence we have obusined is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention 10 note (26) in the financial statements, which describes the increase in the profit margin for uas
stitions retroactively from the date of 23 August 2013, and the company is still awaiting approval of the guantities
and statements sent 1o the Ssudi Arabian Ol Company (Aramee), Dur opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters arc those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
{inancinl statements of the current year, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the fimaneial
statements a5 1 whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide 2 separate opinion on these
migtters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT frontined)
ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Key Aundit Matters (continued)

implementation of TFES 16 “*Leases™

HKey audit matier

How the maiter was Mdr@ﬂ in our avdit

The Company adopted [FRS 16 “Leases™ with effsct from
1 January 2019 and this new stundord supérsedes the
requirements of 1AS. 17 "Leases™.

Management performed a detailed analysis of each leass
contract to identify differences between the requirements
af the tow standard, [dentify the changes requued 1o be
made to existing accounting policies and dewerming the
transition adjustments and consequential chunges to
processes and controls required particularly in connection

with identificstion af whelher un arrangement meets the

definition af a lease.

[FRS 16 principally modifies the accounting treatment af |

operating leases at inception with the recognition of a
right of use on leased asset and a corresponding lishility
far the discounted amount of lease payments over the term
of lease contract.

The Cempany has chesen to apply IFRS |6 “lesses™ under
the full retrospective approsch, Therefore, the comparative
financial statement have been restated, and the cumulative
impact of the first time adoption of the standard presented
as at | Jonuary 2018 Accordingly, this resulted in
recognition of right of use assets of Saudi viyal 1,785
million as at | Jaruary 2018 ond lease liabilities of Saudi
rivals 1,671 million A< of that date,

Management also assessed the disclosure requirements of
a new standard to be made in the consolidated financial
sintenent,

We considered this as & key audit matter bocause the
calculations of amounts: underlying the right of use assets
and the coresponding lease labilities involve new
processes for collecting date, complex rules and the
application of significant management judgement relating
1o the terms in the contracts.

We performed the following procedures relation
1o the implementation of IFRS 16:

» Reviewed mansgement's assessment of the
impact of IFRS 16 terms of the clsssification
and measurement of ity right-of-use assets and
lease ligbilitizs and understood the spprosch
luken towards implementation;

= Assessed the accuracy of the lease data by
festing on a sample basis, the leass dats
captured by menagement through the
inspection of lease documents;
Tested lease schedules. on a sample basis, by
recalculating the amounts underlying the
right-of-use assets and lesse Habilities, based
on the terms of the lease contracis, We also
tested the arithmetical accuracy of those
individual Jease schedules and how these
necumulnied into the overall adjustiment tolals
opplied in the consolidsied financial
stalements gs | Jonuary 2018; and

*» We also reviewed the adequacy of the
Company disclosures included in  the
accompanying financial statements in relation
to the implementation of the new standard.

Refer o note {3-2) for the accounting policy and note (5) for related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Koy Audit Matiers (comtinued)

| Recognition of revenue

Key audit matter

How the matier was addressed in oor audit

Reverue was considered one of the main matters for review,
given that revenue is the main component of the campany's
business, and there are polgntial risks of fraud and ermor
related (o the redngnition of revenue in accordanca with the
international standards of auditing approved in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, end that the group provides different types
of moduets, and a huge number of transactions are carried
ot On = daily basis. revenug is recagnized thraugh
automated systcms.

We have designed auditing procedures to deal with:
this key wmatter throuagh a preliminary risk
assessinent provedure that includes identifying risks
and retated  assurences by undersianding the neture
of the company’s activity and its eavironment and
documenting and evaluating the revenue aceounting
system covering activities, operations: and intermal
revénue control  related  fo performance  of
monitoring  and performance checks, A major
control procedure wis tested 10 ensere the design,
Implementation and enforcement of intemal coniry|
procaedures. Analytizal procedures were also applied.
Our IT speciglist slso participated  in  the
understanding end evalustion of the revenus-related
FI° system and testing the acouracy of dats and
reports issued by [T systems Then, owr sudit
contmls were designed according o the resulls of
the rizk assesement procedures. We have verified on

4 test basis, of the invoices issued by the company,

and we have implemented deailed  analytical
procedures 0 understand that the reasons for the
varianoe in revenue compared o the last year had o
rationale  for the business, that the revenye
recognition cnteria that the company adopts for all
mEjor revenue sources wre Bppropriate and in line
with accounting policies The company diselosed in
the financinl statements:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

Key Audit Matters fcontinued)

Impairment loss on trude receivables
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our andit

As ar 31 December 2009 the chrrving value of trade
retivables amounted 10 Sawpdi Rivals 396 Million (31
Decamber 201 8: Suudi Rivals 439 million) and the allowanea
for impairment of trade receivables amounted to Saudi Riyals
i million (31 December 2018 Smudi Rivals 3 million).

The ability to collect trade receivables is a key component of
the Company's management of working capital, which is
| managed on an engoing basis,

The manngement determines and records expected credit
losses based on what is required by IFRS 9. Significant
judgments, éstimates and assumplions have been made by
manggement in caloulating the impact of the cxpected credit
losses,

We considered this a key audit matter due 1o the judgments
and estimates fnvolved in the spplicstion of the expected
eredit loss model.

We have evaluated procedures and controls for tmds
rectivables and customer oredit nisk checks.:

We have also evalunted the approprisieness of
judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions
made by munagement.,

We have verified the genssal 1T conirols around the
accounting svstem and found them 1o be effective,
We have performed one test lo check the aging
accuraoy of trade recelvables [ram the system.

We also evaluated the msthodological methods
implemented by the company o the light of the
requiremants of criterion (9), and specifically
evaluated the company's method in ussessing the
probability of defzult, and the exient to which
information related o future expectations s
included i the coloulstion of expecied credit
losses and changes in (he standard of loss that may
lead to failure.,

Wealso evaluated the disclostres In the fnantial
stalements required under Standard 9 and Stundard
7 “Financial Instrumenis: Disclosupes™,

Refer to note (3) for the accountmg policy and note (13) for related disclosures.

(¢
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information nefuded
in the annual report but does not include the financia) statements and our auditers’ repont thereon. The annual
report isexpected to be made availokle 1o uzafter the date of this auditors” report.

Qur vpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion therean,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibitity is 1o read the other information
identified above when it becomes svpilable and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audif, or otherwise
appaars to be matérially misstated.

When we read the annual report and conclude that there is & material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matler 1o those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Manugement and Thase Chorged with Governance for the Financial Stutements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Imernational Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arahia and
other standards snd pronouncements issued by SOCPA, Regulations for Companies and Company's By-laws,
and for such imernal control &5 management detérmines is necessary 1 enable the prepamtion of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for agsessing the Company's ability to
continue as 8 golng concern, disclasing, as applicable, matters related 1w going concem and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Those charged with govemanee are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financlal reporting provess,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit af the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonnble assurance ghout whether the financial statements as 8 whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aoditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabla will slways deteet a maoterial
misstaternent when it exists. Misstatémenls gan srise from frand or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the apggregite, they could reasonably be expectsd to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statemeits,

Az part of an audit in sccordsnce with 1SAs (hat are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saodi Arabia, we éxercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® ldentify and assess the: risks of materisl misstatemint of the fnancial statements, whither due to fraud

or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriste to provide s basis for our opinion. The risk of not dewecting & material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY

(A Saudi Jolnt Steck Company)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (condinued)

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design sudit procedures that
are appropriate m the circumstances, but nol for the purposs of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal eontral,

s Evaluate the approprintencss of accounting polities used and the réagonablensss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Cenclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going conzem basis of sceounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncartainty &xists related 10 evenls or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company s ability to continue s 8 going coneern. If
we conclude that a material uncerainty exists, we are reguired 1o drew antention in our auditors’ repart
1o the related disclosures in the financial ststements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modily our
ppinion. Dur conclugions are hased on the sudit evidence abtained up to the date of our suditors” report.
However, future events or canditions may cause the Company to eease to continuie as a going concam.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation; structure and content of the financial smrements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fiir presentation,

= Ohbtain sufficient appropriate audit svidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business. activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other malters, the planned seope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in intemnal control that
we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with & statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and other mattars that
may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and whore applicable, related safeguards.

From the maters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current vear and are therefore the key sudit
matters. We deseribe these matters in our anditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosurs
about the matter or when, in cxtremely rare cireumstances. we determing that o matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT DECEMBER 31,2019

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net
Right-of-use assets, net
Deferred eosty, nat
investment in Join: veniures

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from a related party:

Investment at fair vatue through profit or loss
Oiher aysets )

Prepaid expenses

Inventories, nel

Acerued revemie

Trade receivable, ne

Bankcs halinces

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

SHAREAOLDERS EQUITY AND
LIABILATIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Shere capital

Statutory reservi

Retnined carnimgs

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIARILITES

Long term Inans

Non-Current particn of Leass Liabilitics
Employess' definad benefits lnbilitss

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for zakat pavable

Current portion of Lease |iabilities
Agerued expensgs ind ather linbilides
Dua 1o 2 related party

Trade paysbles

Current portion of long term laany
Shoet term loans

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES

The pecommpany notes from (1] 1o (35) are integrated part of these financinl stotements.

Noke

24

10
11
12
13

15
52
i6

17
3-2
I&
245
9

I5

31 Deceniber * B badod ™ “Restated”
204 31 December 2008 1 Jmuery 2018
SR SR SR
1,090,358,233 | 68,191,012 1, 036,879,655
1,742,807,519 1,671,851,577 1,785,785 448
11,728,025 7,723,002 14,480,937
5,778,342 4,861,563 2311652
2,850,672,119 2.752,628,054 2,839,457,682
2,701 944 3,931,599 4,144,121
21,397,727 . -
43,138,898 47204738 37,804,363
B3, F48.481 7296236 60,028,580
73265712 63,390,031 38,469 94T
22,639,676 24,128,164 42,647,183
390,318,159 426,854,351 363,280,199
G8.147 083 46,062,378 46,083,128
734,547,680 GTHHE6D518 392,457,521
3,585,219,79% 3,431,497,572 3431915213
600,000,000 500,600,000 500,000,000
65,561,411 107,335,284 GR.9TR.569
209,208,213 35,920,326 28,215,543
874,766,624 643,255,610 627,104,112
60,316,175 152,807,916 171,785,110
1,423,617,065 1367379213 1,458 892 958
66,067,876 56,771,528 53,457,001
1,550.001,116 1,526,958,657 1,684,135,069
13,184,206 4,933,188 4,586,060
219,158,800 206,983,255 212,973,253
293,967,208 220,340,753 210,176,512
2,001,331 7,581,302 5,855,800
126,222,052 407,161,142 268,997,507
70,918,462 64,611,830 70,906 K6
335,000,000 349,671,576 338,000,000
1,160,432,059 1,261,283 305 1,120,586,032
2710453175 2,788,241 962 2 A04,721,101
3,585,210,794 343,407,572 3,431,915,213

2



Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Revenue

Cost of revenoe

GROSS PROFIT

EXPENSES

Selling and marketing

General and adminisration

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Finaacinl charges

Provisten For Cantingen! Linhilities

Compary share in gains of fmvestment in joint vemnture
Profit from investment gt [gir value through profit or loss
Other income, nel

INCOME BEFORE ZAKAT ESTIMATED
Zakatestimated

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

ITEMS NOT 1O BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR

LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS:

Re-measurement for employess' defined benelits
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Earnings per share from:

Income from operations

Wit inoome for the venr

“Resinted”
2019 2018
Nute SR 4R
5,681,129.210 5,176,584,887
(5,219,520,747)  (4,923,616,01%)
461,599,463 252,968,868
20 (5,113,623) (6,813,745)
21 (142,649,978) (98,789, 189)
313,835,862 147365934
5] (74,328,046) (81.415248)
27 (17,407.451) -
1 916,779 2,549,911
8 1,397,727 =
23 B3.578,678 831,841
307,993,549 69,332,438
17 {16,249,801) (2.426475)
291743658 66,905,963
6 (8,132,644) 555,533
283,611,014 67,461,458
25 523 246
5 48 1.i2

The sccompiny notes from (1) to (35) ure nteprated part of these Fnancis] statements.




Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED Diecember 31, 2019

Shre Statutary Retained
Capital FESETTE ERATNgS Total
SR SR SR SR

Balapce ot | Jansary 2018 { Restated) 00,000,700 08,578,560 56,785, T80 £55,764,358
Adiustments (note 3-2) - - (28,570 246) {28.570.246)
Balanee o1 | Jeniary 2018 “Restated™ 500,000,000 98,9 78559 28215843 627,194,112
Eoard of directors' remunerations 3 = (1,400,000] (1.400,000)
Dividents - - (50,000,000) (50,000,000)
et income for tha vear 5 = 66,905,363 15,905,963
Cieher eomprehensive income for the year - - 553,535 555.593
Total comprehensive indcme for the pariod - - 67461494 67461 498
Transfer to statutory reserve - 3,35&,?1 5 (8,356,715) -
Balance #1 31 December 2018 00,000,000 Il}T.JBS.ZE'l- 35,920,326 643255610
Capital increase {niote 14) 100,000,000 (70,948,239) (29,051,761) 2
Dividends {note28) = = {50,000,000) {50,000,000)
Board of direetors’ remunerations (note2d) - - (2.100,000) (2, 100,000)
Net Income for the yeer —= = 191,743,658 291,743,658
Other comprehensive income for the yéar { - - (8,132,644) (8,132,644)
Total comprehensive income for the period 283.611.014 283,601,014
Trunsfer (o stamutory raserye 29,174,366 (29,174 366) -
Balane¢e at 31 December 2019 600,000,000 65561411 209,205213 74,766,624

The secompany notes from (1) to (35) ere micgrated pen of thess finamcial swrements,



Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2019

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Intome btfore Zikat estimnted

Adjustorent for

Dhepseciatian

Dupreciafion of right of use nsset

Amorilzation of deferred costs

Campany share ln gains of investment in jolnt venture
Profit from investment-al fair volue through protit and loss
Provision For Contingent Liahilities.

Provision For expected credil [nsses

Reversl of Provision for expeated eradit lossay
{GatlhyLass on sole of property and equipmen:
Provision for employess’ defined banafits

Changes in operafing sssets and Habilitles:
Trade rooeivable

Accrued revenue

Inventaries

Prepaid exponses

Other azzets

Trode pavables

et Telated parties transrotion

Accrued expenses and other Habiliiaa

Met cash flows generated from operations
Employees' defined benefii paid
Zakat peld

Met cash from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase invesiments al fhir value through profit and loss
Beferred cnsts

Puschuss of praperty and equipment

Proweeds [eom sale of property and equipment.

Met cash used in investlng activitles

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short lerm loans
Repayment of thart term Joans
Procesds from Long term iomis
Fepeyment of long term loaas
Bepeyment of lease linhilities
Dividends paid

Hoard of direciors’ reminscatons

Net cash nsed in fnancing activitfes

CHANGE [N BANKS BALANCES
Banks balantes, beginning of the year

BANKS BALANCES, END OF YEAR
Non e

Re-measuremant for employees defined benefits
Cagpltnl Incrense

"Restated”
2419 28
SR BR
307,993,549 69,332,438
93,989,939 90,268,106
201,573,568 26,882,162
9,836,732 6,757,935
{216,779 (2,349,911)
(1,397,727} a
17 407,451 .
6,941,545 2,182.973
(3,735,427) (1,302.927)
(806,105) 4711
11,719,358 g 557,617
642,506,104 281,979,934
33,350,074 (64,423,508}
1488 488 18,319,019
(6,875,681 (26.520,084)
(13.5510,245) (10,269,656)
(934,139) {4,400,396)
(180,939,090} 138,163,635
(4,440,5186) 1,938,216
F,626,4560 10,164,220
544,211,451 444,750,890
[10,555,654) (5.667.555)
(T.998.873) (2,079.358)
55 656,924 437,003,579
(20,000,008) -
(13,B41.755) -
{122,590,136) (124,481,762)
7,339,981 2,158,688
(140,001,910 (122,482,074}
i, 065,000,000 4 466,766,712
{4,070,671,576) {4.455,005,136)
50,000,000 e
(86,185,168) (B4, 362, |66)
(221,523,565) (190,452.065)
{50,000,000) (50,000,000
(2,100,000) {1,400,000)
(324.480,309) {314,942.655)
52,084,705 {20,750
46,062,378 46,043,128
98,147,083 46,062,378
(B,132,644) $55,535
100,000,000 -

The acoompany nates [rom (1) to (35) are inegraied perl of these finonclnl statements.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

)

(a)

(b)

(€]

(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

ORGANISATION AND ACTIVITIES

Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company {the “Cempany™) {8 a Saudi Joimt Stock Company registered in
Rivadh, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial registration number 10710002475 issued in Rivadh on 13
Rabi Al-Thani 1382 (corresponding to |2 September [962),

The Company's objectives, as per its commercial registration, include retail and wholesale trading of fuel, lubricants,
catering services and the transportation of goods using highways in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in accordance with
license number 010111012400, establishment of vehicle workshops and car washes and acquisition of land 1w
construct buildings for sale or lease for the interest of the Company and construction, managing, operating and renfing
take away centres for hot and cold beverages and food.

BASIS OF PREFPARATION
Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in aceordunce with Internationa! Financial Reporting Standard “1FRS"
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“LASE™), that is endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Aceountants
(“BOCEA™

The Capital Market Authority issued the decision of the Board of Coemmissioners on 15 Muharram 1438H (16
Clctober 2016} to requite listed companies to apply the cost model when measuring the assets of property and
equipment, investment properties and inangible assets when adopting the IFRS for a period of 3 years begin from the
date of adoption of the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and continue to comply with the requirements for
disclosure of IFRS adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, which require disclosure of fair value.

The company’s current liabilities are in excess of current assets by SR 425,904,379 However, the management and
haard of directors assumed that the company have the ability to continue as 4 poing coneem. I is their assessment that
the company will generate sufficient profits and cash Oows 1o meet ongoing liabilities and scheduled repayments.
These financial statements have been accordingly prepared on & going coneern basis.

Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis asing the acorual basis of aocounting except
for the following,
e Investments al fair valoe through profit and loss measured at fair valoe,

» Employee benelits obligations that are regognized at the present value of future liabilities using the expected
credit unit method.

Functional and presentation cnrrency:

The financial statements are presented in Szudi Riyal, which is the Company’s functional currency.

Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of finaneial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported pmounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In particuler, information aboul significant arens of estimation uncertainties and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significam effect on the amounis recognized in the financial statements is
simmarized a5 follows:

- Manasement periodically reassesses the veonomic vselul lives of mngible assets and intangible assets based on the

general condition of these assels and the expectation for their useful sconomic lives in the fture,

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets for the privilege of providing services is from the period when the company
will be able to charge for use of the public infrastructure to the end of the concession period.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Fnded December 31, 2019

2) BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

{d) Use of estimates and judgments {continued);

- Manzgement frequently reviews the lawsuits raised against the company based on a legal study prepared by the
company’s legal advisors. This study highlights potential risks that the company may ineurred in the furure,

- Management estimates the provision to decrease inventory to net renlizeble value if the cost of invénlory may not be
recoverable, damaged, wholly ar partially obsolete, and it selling price to fall below cost or any other [actors that
causes the recoverable amount te be lower than its earrying amount.

- Management estimates the recoverable amount of the other financial assels to determine whether there was any
impaitment in its value.

- The management determines the cost of the end of service benefits plans and the present valuz of the ¢nd of service
benefits obligations using actuarial valustions. Actuarial valuations include making various assumptions thit may
differ from sctual future developments and include determining a discount rate, future salary increases, death rites and
future increases m pension. Given the difficulty and evaluation of the underlying assumptions and their underlying
assumptions, which are [ong-term, the defined benefit obligation is vulnerable to ¢hanges in these assumptions. These
assumptions are reviewsad ot 2ach reperting date.

- By their nature, provisions are dependent upon estimates and assessments whether the oriteria for récognition have
been met, including estimates of the probability of cash outflows Provisions for uncertsin Kabilities imvolve
management’s best estimate of whether cash outflows are probable.

Estimutes and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to gocounting estimates are
recognized In the year in which the estimates are revised and in any futare vears affected,

Fair value messurement

- Fair value represents the amount may be collected from the asset sale or a boest to convert eommitment between
knowledpeable prrties on the same terms and dealing with others and depends on the fair value measurement of the
following conditions:

- In the principal market for the asset o Habillty, or the most advantogsous market for the asset or liahility in the
absence of & prineipal marker the company should be abile 1o handle through the most sdvaniageous market.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lighility, the Company uses market observable data as far ns possible.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used In the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level I: quoted prices (imadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
{i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices).

- Lewel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If the
inputs used 1o measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in different levels of the fair value
hierarchy. then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant (o the entire measuremient,

- The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fhir value hicrarchy at the end of the reponting period during
which the change has pceurred.

- Management believes that its estimates and judgments are reasonable and adequate,
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3-1 Accounting Policies
The Company has adopted the International Financial Reporting Standards in the preparation of the financial
statements as of December 31, 2019 in aceordance with the instructions of the Saudi Orzanization for Cerified Public

Accountants. The mandatory implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards is sffective from |
January 2017,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3} SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3-1 Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Finaneial instruments
Clessification of inancial assety

The Company classifies its financial assats under the following categories:

. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);
. Fair vitlue through other comprehensive income (FYVTOCT); and
. Amartised cost

These classifications are on the basis of business model of the Company for managing the financial assets, and
contractual cash flow characteristics,

The Company measures financial assst at amortised cost when it 15 within the business model to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, and contractial terms of the financial asset give rise on specified daes to cash flows
that are solely payments of priticipal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

For assets measured at fair value, pains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income,

Initial measurement

At initial recognition, financlal assets or financial labilities are nieasured ar thelr fuir value Transaction costs of
tinancial assets carried at fair value through profit or kess are expensed in profit or less, Tn the case of financial assets
or financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial lability is the initial recognition
amotunt, Trade receivables are measured at transaction price.

Financial assels classified as amortized cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost less
impairment loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition):

oThe asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets In order to collect
contracioal cash Mows: and

eThe contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

If & financial asset does not meet both of these conditions, it is measured at fair value.

The Group makes an assessment of a business model ar portfolio level as this best réflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to management. In making an assessment of whether an
assel i5 held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash [ows, the Group considers:

sManagement’s stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the operation of those policies in
practice;
oThe risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;
s How management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;
o Whether the management’s stralegy {ocus on eaming contractual commission income;
sThe degree of frequency of any expected asset sales;
eThe reason for any assel sales; and
Whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period relative to their contractual maturity or are sold
shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-1 Accounting Policies [Continued)

fa) Financial instruments (Continned)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
will consider the contractual terms of the instrument. This will include assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments messured subsequently at
amortized cost. Interest is recognized in the conselidated comprehensive income statement.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are subject to impairment.
Financial assets designated as FVOCI with recycling

[Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVOCT:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whase objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

For debt financial instruments measured at FVOCI, commission income and impairment losses or reversals
are recognized in the consolidated comprehensive income statement and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortized cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and accumulated under
the investment revaluation reserve.

When these instruments are derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financinl assets classified as FYPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVPL, unless the Group designates an investment that
is not held for trading as at FYOCI on initial recognition.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost of FVOC] eriteria are measured ot FVPL. In addition,
debi instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria but are designated as at FVPL lo avoid accounting
mismatch are measured at fair value through comprehensive income.

A debt instrument may be designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
linbilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any
debt instrument as FVPL since the date of initial application of IFRS 9 (i.c. 1 January 2018).

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortized cost 1o FVPL when the business model is changed such
that the amortized cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt instruments thal are designated as
at FVPL on initial recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognized in the consolidated statement of prefit or loss.

Commission income on debt instruments as al FVPL is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVPL is recognized in consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS |5
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

3-1 Accounting Policies [Continued)

(a)Financial instruments (Continoed)
Investment in eguity instruments designated as FVOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevoeable election (on an instrument-by-instrument bagis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as ot FVOCL Designation as at FVOCI is not permitted if
the eguity investment is held for trading.

A financial asset or Minancial liability is held for trading i

s [t is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it n the near term;

s On initial recognition it is part ol a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e [t is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contraet or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in other reserves. Gain and losses on such
equity instruments are never reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss and no impairment is
recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Investrnent in unquoted equity instruments which
were previously accounted for at cost in accordance with 1AS 39, are now measured at fair value. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss when the Group's
right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Investment revaluation reserve includes the cumulative net change in fair value of equity investment
measured ar FVOCI. When such equity instruments are derecognized, the related cumulative amount in the
fair value reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Classifieation of financial liabilities

The Company designates a financial ability at fair value through profit or loss if doing-so eliminates or significantly
reduces msasurement or recognition inconsistency or where a company of financial liahilities is mamged and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis.

These amounts represent Habilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of the year which
are unpaid, The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 12 months of recognition. Trade and other
payzables are presented as curreat [abilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair valoe and subsequently measured &l amortised cost using the effective
mterest method.,

All other financial linbilities are subsequently measured at mmortized cost using the effective interest rate methad,
Offsetting financial assots and liabilitics

Financial assets and lisbilities are offset so that the net amount reported in the statement of financial position where
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention (o
seltle an a neét basls or realise the asset and settle the liahility simultaneously.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are reclassified when the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. For
example, when there s a change in management’s intention to hold the asset for a short term or long term. Finraneial
liabilities are not reclassified.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-1 Accounting Policles (Continued)
{a) Financial instromentsfcontinmed)

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial assets isas follows:

Amortised cost: Assets that are leld for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are messured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance ineome using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains (losses), together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Tmpairment losses ure presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTOCT: Asssts that ave held for collection of contractual cash {lows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets! cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, sre measured at FVTOCL Mevements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCL except for the recegnition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the finaneial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC] is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other guing (losses), Interest income {rom these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest ate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains (losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial nsset when, and only when the contractusl rights to the eash flows from
financial asset expire, or it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
A substantial change in the terms of & debt instrument is considered as an extinguishment of the original liability and
the recognition of a new finaneial liability,

Impairment

Financial assets .
The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on debt instruments that ar2 measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables.

Mo impairment less is recognized for investments in equity instruments. The amount of expected cradit losses reflects
changes in credit risk since initinl recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company applies the simplified approach to caleulate impairment on trade receivables and this always recognizes
lifetime ECL on such exposures. ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a flow rare based on the Company
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecust direetion of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Company applies the general approach to calculate impairment, Lifetime ECL
is recognized when there has been a significant incréase in credit risk since initial recognition and 12 month ECL is
recognized the credit risk on the financial instrument has not incressed significantly since initial recognition. The
gssessment of whether credit risk of the financial instrment hay increased significantly since initial recognition is
muade through considering the change in risk of default oceurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-1 Acepunting Policies (Continued)
(&) Financial instruments fcontinmed)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given defaull (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default i= based on
historical data adjusted by forward-locking informartion 25 described ubove.

As for the exposure ot default for financial assers, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date. Exposure at default for off balance sheer items is arrived at by applying a credit conversion factor to the undrawn
portion of the exposure.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of significant increases in credit
risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financizl instruments are grouped on the following
brasis;

Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Company trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables and amounts due
fiom customers are gach assessed as a separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed {or expected credit losses on
an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Mature, size and industry of debtors; and

- External credit ratings: where avatlable.

The Company recognizes an impaimient gain or loss in the stetement of profit or loss for all financial mstriments with a
corresponding adjustment 1o their carrying amount through 8 loss allowance sccount, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured. al FVOCL, for which the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive incame and
aceumulated in the investment revalustion reserve, and does not reduce the camrying amount of the financiel asset in the
statement of financial position.

Non-financial assets

I'he Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be Impaired. If any
indicstion extsts, pr whoen annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Company estimaies the asset’s
recoverable emount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU's falr value less costs of disposal
and 1ts value 1o use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that ere largely independent of these from other assets or group of assats,

When the carrying umount of an asset or CGU excesds its recoviersble amount, the asset is considered fmpaired and is
written dawn o its recoveérable amount.

In asgessing vilue in use, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to their present vatue using a discount mte that
reflpots current market asseasments af the time value of money.and the risks specific to the assel. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are mken inte account. IT no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriale valuation rmode) is used. These caleulations are conoborated by valuation multiples. quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. An assessment is made at each reporting date
determine whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist ar have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assat’s or CGLUI's recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the sssumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment |oss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recovernble amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no imparirment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Sueh reversal is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss unless the asset is carried @t a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal 15 treated as a revaluation increase,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-1 Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Property and equipment

(1) Recogeition und meaxurentent

Items of proparty and equipment are measured at cost less aceumulated depresiation and impairment losses,

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to & wirking condition for its intended use. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capimlized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as items
{major componenits) of property and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment and are recognized net within “other expense” in the
statement of comprehensive income.

(i1} Subsoguent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if
it 15 probable that the future ceonomic benefits embodied within the part will flow lo the company and 115 cost can
be messwred reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property and squipment are recognized in statement of comprehensive income as incurred,

(iii) Depreciation

(c)

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on 4 straight-line basis in statement of income over the estimated
uselil lives of each component. Land is not déepreciated,

Items of property and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed and are ready for use, or in
respect of intermally construcied assets, rom the date that the asset is comploted and réady for use,

Leaschold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life or term of the lease, whichever
15 shorter.

The depreciations rate of property and equipment for the current and previous year are as follows:

Depreciation rate

Buildings 3

L.easehold improvements Shorter of lease contract term
ar useful life

Machmery and equipment 10

Trucks 7.14 with 20% salvage value

Vehicles 15-25

Computers 12,5-25

Tools 12-20

Fumitme & fixture 1

Diepreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed al each reporting date.

Projects under construction

Projects under construetion are cartied ab cosl, and when the project is ready for use, it is transfersed to its own
item of property and equipment.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-1 Aceounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

(e)

(n

X

Revenue from sales is recognized when the goods are delivered and the services rendered to the customers,
Revenue from the sale of the goods is recognized based an a five step model as set out in IFRS 15

Step 1. Identify the contract with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between (wo or more parties
that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contragt
with a customer to ransfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transsction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services 1o a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behall of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
in an amount that depicts the amoeunt of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying sach performance obligation.

Step 3. Recognize revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

. The customer simultanesusly receives and ¢onsumes the benefils provided by the Company's performance as the
Company performs; or

. The Company’s performance creates or enhiances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

. The Company’s performance does nof create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company
ks an enforceable right 1o payment for performance completed Lo date.

For performance obligations, where one of the above conditions are not miet, revenue is recognized at the point in
time ot which the performance obligation is satisfiad.

When the Company satisfles a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services, it creates a
contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount billed to the
customer exceeds the amount of vevenue recopnized, this gives rise to & contract liability.

Revinue is measured it the fair value of the censideration received or receivable net of discounts and taxes, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment,

Revenue is recognized in the statement of profit or loss to the extent that it is probable that the sconomic benefits
will flow 1o the Company and the revenue and casts, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receiveble are stated at original invoice amount less appropriste allowance for any doubtful trade
accounts receivable, an estimate for allowance for doubtful trade accounts receivable is made by applying the
simplified approach permitted by [FRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recopnition of the receivables,

Accrucd income

Accrued income comprise of revenue earned for services provided and goods delivered but not yet billed as at the
financial position date.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are measured &t the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of inventories is determined based
on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordimary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

Oifsetting

Financial linbilities are set off ngainst financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the financial position only
when the obliging legal rights are available and when settled on net basis or the realization of assets or settlement
of liabilities is done at the same time.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has & present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to settie the
abligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability,

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid in advance for renting, offices, employees housing and pther services,
Prepaid expenses are emortized, using the straight line method, over the period of the related contracts.

Deferred costs

Deferred costs represent key money paid for renting new petral stations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Deferred
costs are amortized, using the straight line method, over the period of the conbracts

Investment in jointly conirolled entity

A joint venture i5 contractual arrangements whereby the Company and other parties underfake an cconomic
activity that is subject to joint control, e the srategic fnancial and operniing policy decisions relating to the
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, Joint venture arrangements thut involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which each party has dan inferest are referred to as “jomtly controlled entities”,
The Company applies the equity method of a¢counting for its interests in jointly controlied entities.

Under the equity method, the interest in the jointly controlled entity is carried i the financial position at cost as
adjusted by post-incorporation changes in the Company's share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entity.
lzss any impairment in the value of individual investment.

Trade payable and aecrued expenses

Linhilities are recopnized for amounts th be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
suppliers or not.

Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue represents advances received against prepaid petrol cards issued by the Company that have not
been utilized by customers at the financial position date and unearned rental income received in advance.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-

(o)

()

(1]

(r)

(s)

1 Accounting Policies (Continued)

Zakat

Zakst is provided on accrual basis in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority for Zakat and
Income (“GAZT") in the Kingdom of Saudi Arsbia, The zakat provision is charged to the statement of
cemprehensive income, Any differences resulting from the final assessments are recorded in the year of their
finalization

Employees' defined benefits liabilities

Provision for employee's end of service benefits is deducted from their periods of service al the finangial position
date. Provision for employzes' end of service benefits is made according to the expeeted unit method in accordance
with 1AS 19 Employee Benefits, taking into account Saudi Labor Law. ‘The provision is recognized based on the
present value of the defined benefit obligatian,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using assumptions for the average annual salary
increase ratio, the average work period of employees and an sppropriate discount rate, The probabilities used are

Calculated on a constant basis for each period and reflect the best management estimates. The discount rate is
determined hased on the best available market returns estimates available at the reporting date.

The re-measurement of actuarial valuation was performed by the Al Khwarizmi for Actuarial Services and was
carried out using the expected credit module.

The miain assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows:

Employee turm ovar Muoderate
Long lerm salary incrsase mic 2.9%
Diseount rale of cash flow 2.0%

Statulory reserve

As required by Saudi Arabisn Regulations for Companies, 10% of the net income for the year should be
transferred to the statutory reserve, The Company may resolve 1o discontinue such transfers when the total reserve
equals 30% of the capital, the reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Finance income:and finance costs

Finange income comprises interest income from deposits at banks, Interest income is recognized us it accrues,
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are net divectly attributable to the scquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognized i profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time of the
transactions, nt financial position date, moneiary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Saudi Rivals at the exchange rates prevailing on that date, Gains and losses arising on settlement and
transiation of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Fnded December 31, 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3-1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenses

Experises incurred by the Company consist of sdministrative and general expenses, operating expenses and selling
and marketing expenses. Sates costs are charged at fill cost of materials; direct labor and indirect costs, Other
direet and indirect expenses relating to management that are not relsted to the production funetion are classified as
administrative and general expenses, Joint expenses are distributed, if necessary, between administrative and
general expensesand operating expenses on & consistent basis. The accerual principle is appHed in charging the
financial period with administrative and general expenses, Sales and marketing expenses consist mainly of costs
incurred in marketing the Company's products and services,

Right of use asset and lease linbilities

Assets held under leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are
elassified ns finance leases, The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair
value and present value of the minimum lepse payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are scoournted
for in pecordance with the nccounting poliey applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised in the Company's
Statement of Financial Position. Rentals in respect of operating leases are charged to the Stutement of Profit or
Loss over the term of the leases;

The Company has recopnized new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of various types ef contracts
including warechouse and depot facilities, sceommeodation / office rental premises, etc. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost, The finance cost I8 charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so s to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability for each period. The
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shiorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.

1. Right-pf-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
- the amount of the initial messurement ol lease liability
- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
- any initial dimect costs, and
- restoration costs,
il. Leaze lighilities include the nét present value of the following lease pavments:
- fixed payvmenis (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
- yartable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate
- amounts expected to be pavable by the lessee under residual value guaraniees
- the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
- Payments of penaltics for terminating the lease, if the lease term retlects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the lessee would have
to pay to borrew the funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Payments associated with shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a smaight-line basis as
an expense in Condensed Statement of Profit or Loss. Short-term leases are lesses with a lease term of 12 months
or lass.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain 3 wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covensnts, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

Purposes.

Segmental reporting
Asegment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing products or services
(4 business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (a geographic:
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments, Because the
Company carries out its activities entirély in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, reporting is provided by business
segment only.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued).
3-2 Changes in significant aceounting policies

The Company has adopted TFRS (16) Lenses from | January 201%, the effact of application of these standards have
been fully explainad in below:

[t applies a number of new standards, amendments, and improvements to standards and interpretations for the first
time in 2019, but it has no material impact on the gompany's financial statements. . The company has not
implemented early any standards, interpretations, or amendments issued and it has not yel become effective.

s IFRS (16) Leases

[FRS (16]) was issued in January 2016 and IFRS (16) replaces existing leases guidnnes including TAS (17) Leases,
[FRIC (4) Determining whather an Arrangement contains a Lease, S1C-(13) Operating Leases-Incentives and SI1C-
(27) Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the legal Form ef a lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-statement of financial position model similar to the sccounting for finance ledses under
IAS (17). The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value' assets (eg,
personal computers) and shor-term leases (ie., leases with a lease wrm of 12 months or less), At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a lability to make lease payments (i.e, the lease lability)
and an asset ropresenting the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (e, the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required b remeasure the lease liability upon the oceurrence
of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term; & change in fiuture lesse payments resulting from a change in an
ndex or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment 1o the right-of-use asset,

Adjustment recognised on adoption of [FRS 16
The Company has adopted IFRS 16 on | January 2018, using ful] retrospective approach, therefore, the cumulutive
effect of adopting IFRS 16 has been recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings at |
January 2018, with a restatement of comparative information. The Company has applied the practical expedient 1o
grandfather the definition of & lease on wransition Le. a1l contracts entered into before | January 2018 are identified
ms leases inaceordance with 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2018

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Changes in significant accounting policies (Continued)

The impact of adopting IERS 16 on the Statenvens of Financial Pasition as at | Jarwary 2008 and 31 December 2018 and
Statement & Prafit or Loss for the period ended 31 December 2018 are as follows;

Effects of IFRS (16) on the opening statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 (extract)

Amounts of
Amontits Sfinancial position
previously after applied the
reported Effect of TFR5 16 standard
SR SR =10
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Right-of-use assets, net o 1,783, 785,448 |, 783,785,448
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 1,053,672,244 1,785,785,448 2,839,457,692
CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses 204,065,584 (144,037,004} 60,028,580
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 736,494,525 (144,037,004) 502,457,521
TOTAL ASSETS 1,790,1 66,769 1,641,748.444 3,431.915.213
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Retained earnings 56,785.789 (28,570,246) 28.215,543
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 655,764,358 (28,570.246) 627,194,112
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITES
Non-current pasition of lease liabilities - 1,458,802,958 1.458,892.958
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 225,242,111 1,458,892,958 1,684,135,069
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current position of Jease liahilities o 212,973,255 212,973,255
Acorued expenses and other liabilities 211,724,055 (1,547,523} 210,176,532
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 909,160,200 211,425,732 1,120,586.032
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,134, 402,411 1,670,318.690 2,804,721,101
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES 1,790.166,769 1,641,748,444 3,431,915.213
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Changes in significant accounting polleies (Continued)

Effects of IFRS (16) on the staztement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 (extract})

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Rizght-of-use assets; net

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expshses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Retained earmings

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITES
Nen-current position of lease liabilities
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

current position of Lease liabilities

Acerusd expenses and other lighilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Amounts of

Amounts financial position
previously after applied the
reported Effect of IFRS 16 standard
SR SR SR
= 1.671,851,577 1,671,851,377
1,080,776,477 1,671,851,577 lt‘?ﬂﬁrﬂﬂtﬁi
212,637,103 (142338 86T) T0.298 236
821,208,385 (142,338,867) 678,869,518
1,901,984.862 1,529.512,710 3.431,497.572
81,151,761 (45,231,435) 35,920,326
688,487,045 (45,231.435) 643,255,610
= 1367379213 1,267.379.213
159,579.444 1,367,379,213 1,526,958,657
- 206,983,255 206,983 255
219,959,076 381,677 220,340,753
1055218.373 207,364,932 1,261,.283,.305
1,213,497 817 I.SE!'?-N.'[ 45 1,788.241,962
1,901,984,862 1,529,512,710  3,431,497.572
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-2 Changes in significant accounting policies (Contimyed)

Effects of IFRS (16) on the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 (extract)

Amonants Amounts of profit
previousiy Effect of IFRS  or loss after applied
reported 16 the standard
SR 5R SR

Cost of revenue (4,064,540, 0832) A0933.063 {4.923,6816,019)
Gross profit 212,035,805 40,933,063 252,968,868
Expenses
General and admmnistration (100, 135,080) 1,345,881 (98,739, 1 89)
income from operations 105,086,980 42,278,954 147,365,934
Financial charges (22,475,105) (58.940,143) (81,415,248)
Income before zakat estimated 85,993,627 {16,661,189) 69,332,438
Met income for the year 83,567,152 (16.661,189) 66,905,963
Earnings per share from:
Income from operations 1.75 0.71 2.46
Net ineome for the year L3 {0.27) 1.12

Effects of IFRS (16) on the statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2018 {extract)

Amounts of cash

Amounts flowr after appliad
previously reported Effect of IFRS 16 the standard
SR SR SR
Met cash from operating activities 246,551,914 190,452.065 437,083,970
Met cash used in financing activities {124.0590,5590) (190,452,065) (314.542,655)
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

Iy SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continoed)
3-2 Changes in significant accounting policies {Continged)

Annnal Amendments to IFRSs (2005-2017) Cyele
These amendments are elfective on or afier January 1, 2019,

IFRS 3 (Business Combination), The Company re-measores i3 previeus share in joint operations when the
company takes control,

TFRS 11 (Joint Arrangements): The Company does not re-measure the previously held stake in joint operations
whin the company eakes control,

1AS 12 {Ilncome Taxes); The Company neconnts for all results of ingome tax and dividend payments. In the same
WaY,

IAS 23 (Borrowing Costs): The Company considers the loan intended to develop any assets within the loans in the
event that it aims to finanee eligible assets ready for specific use or sale.

New Standards and Inferpretations Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards, amendments and improvements to standards gnd interpretations are effective fur annual
periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2020, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements.
Management is still in the process of assessing the potential impacts of the application of the new standards.

Amendments

s Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3).

The IASB has issued '‘Definition of a Business {Amendments to IFRS 3) ““Group Operations” to assist firms in
determining whether a company of operations and assets acquired represent a business or not. These amendments
clarify the minimum requirements of the enterprise, cancel the rssessment of whether market participants are able to
replace any missing elements, add directions to help enterprises assess whether the acquired operation is material,
narrow the scope of the enterprise’s definitions and outputs, and enter the optional fir valug concentration est.

s  Amendments to TAS (1) TAS (8) on the fundamental definition
These amendments 1o IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements,” and 1AS &, “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Estimates and Accounting Errors” and subsequent amendments to ather [FRSs:
- Useof a consistent definition of substance in all memational financial reporting standards and the conceptual
framework of financial reporting;
- Clarify the explanation of the fundamental definition; and
- Include some guidslines in IAS | on non-material information.

The Company expects 10 apply the above standards and interpretations (improvements) in the financial statements by
the date stated in the Standard with no significant impact on the Company's financial stalements,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

5) RIGHT OF USE ASSETS, NET
5/1 The movement in the rightl o use asseis for the year is o8 Tollows:

“Restoted"” " Restated”
Decenber 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 January 1. 2018
SR e 114 LR
Depreciation Balance Depreciation Balanee Balance
Land 1,609,342 1,318,017 1,863,260 2,881 43R 4,807,353
Building 199,964,226 1,741,489,502 205318,932 1,568,567,839 L 780,478,095
Total right of use 201,573,568 1,742,807,519 206,882 192 1,671.851.577 1,785 785448

Additions to the right to use assets during the year ended December 31, 2019: SAR 362 million (December 31, 2018: SAR 96 million)

5/2 Lease Linbilities
The movement in Lease Liabilities for the vear is as follows:

~The table below shows the jease obiigations based on the confractual maturity date:

“Restated” “Restated”
Decenber 31, 2019 Dgcember 31, 2078 Jarmeary 1, 2018
- SR SR SR
Non-Cuwrrent portion of Léase Liabilities 1,423.617.065 1,.367.379.213 1,458 892 058
Current portion of Lease Liabilities 219,158,800 206,583,255 212,973,255
Total lease linbilities 1,642, 775,865 1,574,362 468 1,671, 866213

The total interest expense on lease linbilities recognized during the year ended December 31,2019 : SAR 54.6 million (31 December

2018 SAR 58.9 miilion),
Expenses related to short-térm and Jow-value lease contracts amounted to SAR 138 million, SAR 4 million respectivily.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

DEFERRED COSTS, NET
“Restated” " Restated”
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 Jarary 1, 20178
SR sR SR

Cost:
At the beginning 6f the year 3,563,963 40,060,561 38625545
Additions 13,841,755 - 3814330
Written off (%) (6.350,333) (9.4945,598) (2.379.414)
Atthe end of the year 38,055,385 30,563,963 40,060,561
Accumulialed amortization:
At the beginning of the vear 22,840,961 25.579.624 21,588,017
Charge for the year 9,836,732 6,757,935 6,231,741
Written off (*) (6,350.333) {9,494, 598) (2.240,134)
At the end of the year 26327360 22,840,961 25,579,674
Met book value T.723.002 14,480,937

11,728,025

{*) Due to the full emortization of the deferred costs refating to certain contracts of petroleum services segment,
during the year, the management has written off the deferred cost and aceamulated smortization of the related
comtracts,

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
On 21 Shaaban 1434 {corresponding to 30 June 2013}, the Company has signed a joint venture (JV) agresment
with Bertschi AG, an entity incorporated in Switzerland, to establish a joimtly eontrolled entity namely Aldrees

Bertschi for logistic services. On 22 March 2015, the Company and co-venture have made a contribution of SR
500,000 each towards the establishment of the jointly contralled entity.

The following is the movement in the investments account.

“Rastated” “Restated”
Decerinber 31, 2009 December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
SR SR SR
At the beginning of the year 4,861,563 2,311,652 1,822.737
Investment pain 916,779 2.549.911 488,915
At the end of the yvesr 5,778,342 4,861,563 2,311.652
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FTINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

During the vear, the company purchased 2 million units in Al-Khair Capiwl Fund (Arameo) with & value of 20
million Saudi ryals, and the investment was classified as an investment at fair value through profit or Joss. Because
the company's management keeps it for short-term sale, with unrealized profits or losses included in the revaluation

of the net asset value of the fund in the statement of profit or loss.

Number of Unrealized gains on revaloation
Name nmits of investments Units Faire value
Al-Khair Capital Fund
{Arameo) 2.000,000° 20,000,000 1,397,727 21,307,727
The investmen! movement at fair value through profit and loss during the vear was as follows:
"Restated"” "Restated”
December 3L, 2019 Dugrrnber 31, 2018 fanuary 1, 2018
SR SR SR
Purchase of investments during the year 20,000,000 - -
Unrealized gains on revaluation of investments at fair value
through profit or loss 1,397,727 - a
At the end of the year 21,397,727 - -
OTHER ASSETS
"Restated” “Restated”
December 31, 2019 December 31,2018 January 1, 2018
SR SR SR
Advance payvments 1o suppliers 15,503,164 28.568,614 21,441,665
Reveivables from employees 17,294,164 13,459,097 12,613,487
Miscellaneous 341,570 177.04% 374971
43,138,898 42,204,759 37,804,363
PREPAID EXPENSES
"Restated” "Restated”
Decernber 31, 2019  December 31, 2018 Jannary 1, 2018
SR SR SR
Prepaid rent 13,081,305 18,968,256 21,064,492
Others 70,767,176 51,329,980 38,964 088
83,848,481 70,298,236 60 028, 580
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

11) INVENTORIES, NET

17)

“Reslated” “Restated”
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 fanuary 1, 2018
R SR SR
Fuel 49,406,465 43445708 29.266,753
Spare parts, lubricants and flters 23,401,108 22,486,004 9,745,058
72.807.573 5,931,892 39.011,808
Provision for slow moving and absolete inventory (541,861) (341,861) (541,861)
72,265,712 63,390,031 38,459,947

ACCRUED REVENUE
Accrued revenue represent revenue earned from services provided and goods delivered to customers but not yet billed at
the balance shieat date and are current in nature,

13) TRADE RECEIVABLE, NET

14)

“Restated” “Restated”
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 farary 1, 2018
SR SR SR
Trade accounts receivable 396,269,202 420 599276 365175278
Provision for expected credit losses (5.951,043) (2,744,925) (1.895,079)
390,318,159 476,854,351 363,280,199

Certain of the above trade accounts receivable are past due, more than normal collection eycle, but not impaired and are
expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable as majority of these receivables are froni government or

semi government institutions.

The movement on the expected credit losses provision was as follows:

Speelal Provision General Provision
{Single) (Colleetive) Total
Balance at | January 2018 1,895,079 - 1.895.079
Charge during thie year 2,152,773 - 2,133,773
Balance-al 31 December 2018 2,744,925 - 2,744,925
Charge dormg the year ﬁ,EM_ 1,545 - 6,941,343
(Reversal) during the year (37354273 - (3.733.427)
Balance at 31 December 2019 5,951,043 - 5,051,043
SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital at December 31, 2019 amounted to SR 600 million (2018: SR 500 million) consisting of 60

million (2018: 50 million) fully paid and issued share of SR 10 each.
On Rajab 11, 1440 H (cormespanding to March |8, 2019), the shareholders approved the inerease of the company's capital
fram 500 million Saudi rivals to 600 million Saudi riyals by issuing one free share for every 5 shares held.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
Employees' defined benefits liabllities

The movement for end af service indemnity is a5 follows:

AL 1 January

Charge during the year

Re-measurement for employees' defined benefits
Payments during the year

Ar 3] December

“Restatod” “Rastnted”
December 31, 2019  December 31, 2008 January 1, 2018
SR SR 5R
56,771,528 53,457,001 55302247
11,719,358 3.537.617 9,315,962
8,132,644 (555,535) 1207352
(10,555,654) (3.667,355) (12,368,560)
66,067 876 56,771,528 53,457,001

sy

The actuarial valuation was performed by Al Khwarizmi for Actumrial Services and was carried out using the

expected credit module.

The main assumptions used for aetuarial valuation were as follows:

Emplovee tum over
Long term salary increase rate
Discount rate of cash flow

17y ZAKAT PAYABLE

a)

b)

The zakat chargs consists of

Provizion for the year
Adjustment for previous vears

Charge for the year

2019 2018

Muoderale Muoderafe

2.9% 4.4%

2.9% 4.4%
“Restialed” “Restaled”

December 31, 2019 Decembey 33, 2018 Janiary 1, 2018
s SR SR

13,749,302 2,426 475 1,940,193
2,500,589 " -
16,249,801 2426475 1,940,193

The difference hetween the financial and smounts subjeet 1o zakat are due to difference in depreciation rates and

treatment of cerain allowances and provisions,

Zukat charged for the year ended December 31, 2019 was calculated on the basis of the adjusted income in addition

to the Zakat base, 2018 on the basis of adjusted income.
The calculstion of zakal base is as follows:

Shareholders’ equity — beginning of the year
Employées' defined bencfits

Long term financing { Credit balances
Zakatable income for the year

Dieductions:
Book value of long term assets, net
Diividends and Board of hrectors’ remumerations

Zakar base

"Roestaled"” “Restated”
December 31, 20019 December 31, 2018 Jarmary 1, 2018
SR SR SR
688,487,045 655,764 358 633,725,496
42,830,535 48,923,459 45,370,627
2,367,034,715 203 493, 142 251,781,971
358,068,346 97058990 TT.607,727

(2.860,131,978) {1.098.070,612)
(52.100,000) {31.400,000)

544,188,663 (145,130,663)

35

{1.0062,928 384)
{4 1,400,000}

(95, 842,363)




Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
17) ZAKAT PAYABLE (Continued)

£) Movements in provision during the year

The movemient in rakal provision 1s as ollows:

" Restated” " Restufed"
December 31,2019 December 31, 2018 fanuary 1, 2018
&R SR SR
At the beginning of the vear 4,933,188 4,586,068 5,504,370
Provided during the vear lﬁ-,]-!?,ﬂ?l_ 2,426.475 [, 540,193
Payments during the year (7,998,873) (2,079.356) (2.858.494)
At end of the year 13,184,206 4935 188

4,586,069

* Zukat is due for the year 2018 at 2.5% of higher of the appreximate zakat base and adjusted net income
attributahle to the Saudi partners, Zakat is due for the year 2009 a1 2,5% of the adjusted net profit und 2,57768% of
thie Zakat base after deducting the adjusted profit.

d) Status of assessment

The Compeny has filed its zakat declaration for all years up to 31 December 2018, The assessments have been
finalized with the General Authority of Zakat and Income Tax (the “GAZT") for all years up to 31 December 2016.
The General Autherity made a settlement with the Company and the settlement amount was paid.

The assessments for the yvear ended December 31, 2017 and 2018 have not been mised by the GAZT, vet.

18) ACUCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

; “Restiated” M Restuted”
December 31,2019 pecumber 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
SR SR SR
Unearned revenue 158,881,133 138,575,051 LR, 020,42 |
Accrued expenses 58,283,851 52,602 958 43.299:301
Provision For Contingent Liabilities 17,407,451 - =
Addvanees from customers 29,394,773 20,162,744 48856810
293,967,208 220,340,753 210,176,532
19} TRADE PAYARBLES
“Restated” “Restaled”
Decermber 31, 2019 poeember 31, 2018 Jantary 1, 2018
SR LR SR
Baudi Arabisn Cil Company (“Amamen™) 194,054 088 378,963 853 229,038,044
Oither trade payables 32,167,964 28,195,289 39,9509 463
226222 052 407,161,142 268,997 507
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
20) SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

2019 “Rustated” 2018
SR SR
Commissions, bonuy and sales incentives 4,095,269 6,234,044
Advertising and publicity 1018354 579,701
5,113,623 6,813,745
21) GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2019 "Restaled” 2018
SRk SR
Emplovees' salories and benefits 115,943,765 76,407,343
Diepreciation (nofe 4) 6,570,210 6,068,228
Maintenance 3,508,947 2,729.753
Rent 1,278,476 1,277,800
Liilities 1.543.368 1,751,664
Printing and siationsry 1,459,797 1,364,224
Travel expense 1,868,145 1,316,494
Professional fees 2,649,183 871,738
Governmental expenses Hl8.615 762,304
Insurance 621,488 A3, 886
Saudi Stack Market expenses (" Tadawnl™) 747,171 447 687
Donations for social services 1,338,026 273,275
Other 4,422,787 4 BEG6, 788
142,649,978 08,789,189
22) FINANCIAL CHARGES
2019 “Restated" 2018
SR SR
Bank charges 19,749,181 22,475,103
Interest an lzase liphilities 54,578,765 SR.O40,145
T4.328,046 §1.415.248
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

OTHER INCOME, NET
"Restated”
2019 2018
SR SR —

The effect of increasing the profit margin - Note (26) 68,119,725 -
{Losses) from disposal of property and equipment #06,105 (o0, 711)
Labor Cifice Refunds 12,923,258 -
Cithers 1,739,590 1,736,552

831,841

B3,578,678

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The share in the joint venture and the investment accounted tor at fair value through profit and loss is explained in

Note (7, 8)

Senior management compensation (senior executives)

“Restated”
2019 2018
SR SR
Short-term employee benefits #.211,012 6687492
Defined emplovee benefit liabilitios 961.620 B1B.112
Rewnrds for members and other commitiees and related expenses
“Restated”
2019 2018
SR SR
Compensation for members and senior executives 19,836,236 5,604,742
Board remuneration 2,100,000 | 0000
Expenses and fees to-attend the mestings of the Board of Diregtors and 88,000 731000

the relevant commilttees

During the year, the Company transacted with following related paries. The transactions are made in normal course

of business and terms of these transactions are approved by the Board of Directors,

Name

M. Hamad Mohammad Aldrees

Mr. Abdul Mohsin Mobammad Aldrees
Aldress Industrial and Trading Company
Seven Orbits Company for Trading
Aldrees Bertschi Logistic Services

38
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

24) RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)
The significant transactions are as follows:

"Restuted" "Restated”
December 31, 2019 Dycpyiper 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Wature of transaction SR SR SR
Purchase of machinery, equipment ind spare parts 8,198,232 17,672,008 16,433, 196
Rental expenses (depreciation of the right to use the assets) 1,665,417 2,171,611 2,663,417
Non-interest bearing funding 2,791,944 3,931,599 4,144,121
The related party balances are as follows:
*Restuated"” "Restaled”
December 31,2018 pocpyuber 31, 2018 January 1, 2013
SR - SR SR
D from a related party
Aldrees Bertschi 2,791,944 3,931,599 4,144,121
Due to a related party:
Aldrees Industrial and Trading Company 2,001,331 7,581,502 5,855 808

25) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share attributable to income from cperations and net income was caleulated by dividing income from
operations and net income for the period by the weighted average number of outstanding shares of 60 million as of
31 December 2015 31 December 2018: 50 million shares).

The number of shares have been retrospeetivaly adjusted for the prior period to reflect the effect of the bonus share
1551,

26) PROFIT MARGIN

On October 01, 2018, the company received a notification from the Natipnal Commitize For Gas Siations
Companies (one of the committees of the Council of Saudi Chambers) that the Ministry of Energy agreed to
incresse the profit marsin for gus stations and service centers of companics that have a qualification certificate from
the Ministry of Municipal and Rural Affairs to become the new profit margin (15 halala For gasoline instzad of 9
halalas per liter and 5 halalas for diesel instead of 3.5 halalas per liter), without affecting retail prices at the stations
to the end consumer.

Accordingly, the profit margin has been changed refroactively, and the company's management has complied with
the requirements of the Saudi Arabian 0l Company {Saudi Aramco) to limit the quantities that apply to it after
increasing the margin from the date of the application starting retroactively from the date of 23 August 2018 and
provide Saudi Aramoo With the stateménts to which the effect appliés and the company is still awaiting approval of
the quantities and the transmitted statements later, and based on the estimates of the company's management,
“Aldrees Petroleum and Trensport Services”, the company recognized the effect of the margin increase on the
finaneial statemants ended on December 31, 2019 and the effect was The following:

The effect was a5 follows:

Balance before Margin effect Balance aflter
Cost of revenue {5,420,077.455) 200,547,708 (5,219,529,747)
Other income 13,458,953 68,119,725 HA5TR67TH
Accounts payable 494 5RO 485 [268,667.433) 226,222,052
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

N{]TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

26) PROFIT MARGIN(Continued)

* The effect of the margin increase for the period from January |, 2019 1o December 31, 2019 has been modified by
recucing the cost of revenue in the comprehensive income statement for the year ended December 31, 2019, As for
the effect of the incredse in the profit margin from August 23, 2018 until December 31, 2018, the effect on other
incame has been proven in Income stalement for the vear ended December 31, 2018,

27} PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The mansgement of Aldress Petrolenm and Transport Services Company recorded a provision for potentisl
liabilities against any liabilities that may arise on the company in line with the company's recognition of the impact
of increasing the profit margin from fuel, accerding to the administration's estimates, the value of provision as at
December 31, 2019: 17,407,431 SAR.

28) DIVIDENDS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATIONS
The general assembly in its meeting on 11 Rajb 1440H (correspending to 18 March 2019) has approved to
distribute cash dividends amounting to SR 50 million representing SR | per share representing 10% of the
Company's and 1o disburse remuncrations for the Cempany's Board of Directors amounting to SR 2,1 million.
29y COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a) At December 31, 2019, the Company had owtstanding contingent linhilities in the form of letters of
suarantes amounting to. SAR 1,227 million (2018 SAR 803 million).

b In addition, the company has capital commitments as of December 31, 201% amounting to SR 14,8
million (2018: SR 51,4 million},

30) SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Binge the Company carries out its activities entirely in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, reporting is provided by
business segment only. The Company has determined its business segments on the basis of type of goods supplied
and services rendered by the Company's business segments and reported o the Company’s executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Transactions between the husiness segments are based on an arm length basis. For exerutive management purposes,
the Company is organized i the following business segment:

= Perroleum Services Segmeni
s Trznsport Services Segment
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
30) SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
The selected segment information is provided by business sepment as follows:

Petrolenm Transpord  Intarcompiny
service Services efiminationy Tatal
SR SE SR SR
As of 31 December 2019
Total assels 3,081,648374 653,683,101  (120,111,676) 3.545.219,799
Total tiabilities 2523877024 306,687,827  (120,111,676) Z,710,453,175
Revenus 5,402.967.569 358,759,761 (B0,598,120) 5,681,129,210
Cost of Revenue 5,055,732.445 244395422 {80,598,120) 5,219.529,747
Gross profit 347.235,124 114,364,330 - 461,599,463
Depreciation and amortization 51,341,551 46,665,120 - 98,006,671
Income from operations 255,303,868 58,531,994 - 313,835,862
Net meome 241354513 50,389,145 291,743,658
Deferred cost additions 13,841,755 - - 13,841,755
Capital expenditare additions 105,932,668 16,657 468 - 122,590,136
Fotal asvets and Liabilites
dx of 3] December 2018 " Restaled”
Total assets 2 862,582,584 685,541,817 (116,626,829) 3431497572
Total lighilities 2,540,158,900  364,709.891 (116,620,829) 278824962
ds of 31 December 2018 - "Restated"
Revenue 4,659,763, 168 196,038,274 (BO,116,555) 5,176,584 887
Cost of Revenus 4,795 894 852 200,837,722 [80,1156,555) 4923616019
Giross profit 165,868,316 a7,100,552 - 252 0G8 868
Depreciation and amortization 49,504,547 47518494 - 97,023,01]
Tncome from operations 104,093 462 43,272,472 - 147,365,834
Nel income 31,953,947 34952016 - 66,905 963
Capital expendiure additions 113,803,300 10,878,262 124,681,762
Tenal assets and Liahilires
Axof 0 Jameary 2018 " Restated”
Tuotal assets 2,814,040.296 671,750,247  (52.875330) 3431915213
Total liabilitics 2478776:675  379.819,756  (53,875.330) 2.804.721,101

31) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

-The Company’s Beard of Directors in their meeting held on 06 Shaaban 144 1H (corresponding to 30 March, 2020)

recommaendad the following:

Distribution of cash dividends of SR 1.3 per share totalling SR 90 million representing 15% of the Compuany™s

share capital.

-The Company's Board of Directors in their meeting held on 27 Rajabl441 H {corresponding to 22 March, 2020)

recommended the following:

[isburse an amount of SAR 500,000 to sach member of the board of directors and the secretary of the board of
directors for the year 2019 The amount distributed as in accordance with the regulations of the ministry of

commerce and the Capital Market Authority
The above recammendations are subjected to the peneral assembly and regulatory spprovals.

- The existenice of novel coronavirus (COVID-=19) was confimned in early 2030 and has spread scross multiple
geopraphies, causing disraptions 1o businesses and economic activity. The Group considers this outbreak to be a
non-adjusting post balance sheet event. It is not practicable to provide a quantitative estimate of the potential impact
ar this stage. The Group does not foresee major impact an its operations, if the situation is nocmalized within a
reasonahle time period. The manegement and those charged with govemnance will continug to monitor the situation
across all seographies and accordingly update stakeholders as per the regulstory reguirements. Any changes in
circumstances may require enhanced diselosures or recognition of adjustments in the condensed interim
‘consolidated financial stwtements of the Group for the subsequent periods during the financial year 2020,
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Aldrees Petrolenm and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company hus exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Commission rate risk

This niote presants information about the company's exposure to each of the above risks, the company's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk; and the company's management of capital,

Risk management framework
The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of company's risk management
Framework.

The company's risk management policics are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company,
1o set appropriaie risk |imits and controls, and to monitar risks and adherence to limits,

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly w reflect changes in markst conditions and the
company's activities.

The company, through its training and management standards and procedures; aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

Credif risk

Credit risk is the risk that ene party will fall fo discharge an obligation and will cause the other party to incur o
financial logs, The Company’s policy is that a1l customers who wish to trade on eredit terms are subject o credit
worthiness evaluation process, Financial instruments that expose the Company 10 concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of accounts receivable, The Company places its bank balances with & number of finencial
institutions with sound credit ratings and has a policy of limiting its balances deposited with each institution, The
Company does not believe that there 15 g sipnificant risk of nop-performance by these financial institutions, The
Company does not consider itself exposed to a concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts recaivable due
to its diverse customer base operating in various industries and located in many regions.

The carryving amount of the financia) pssets represents the maximium credil sxposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the financial position date at 31 December was as follows:

g

fn Saudi Rival As of December *Reshrhed” " Restated"”
31,2019 As of December  As of January 01,
31,2018 2018
Trade sccounts receivable, net 390,318,154 406,854,351 363.280,199
Investment m fmir value through profit 21,397,727 - -
or loss
Cash at Bank 08,147,083 46,062,378 46,083,128
Accrued income 22,639,676 24,128,164 42,647,183
Other assets 43,138,598 42,204,759 37,804,363
De from related parties 2,791,944 3,831,599 4,144,121
578,433,487 543 181.25] 403 058,064




Aldrees Petrolenm and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

32) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

1t is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments assoeiated with
financial instruments; Liquidity risk may result from an inability 10 sell a financial asset quickly at an-amount elose
to its fair value, The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that Islamic bank facilities are available, The
terms and conditions of the focilities are disclosed in note (15), The Company's terms of sales require amounts to
be paid either on cash on delivery or cn terms basis, Trade payables are normally settled within 60 days of the date
of purchase.

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated intersst payments:

December 31, 2019

Carrying Contractusl Cash
In Saudi Rival ___ Amount Flows Less than a vear More than a year
Loars 466,234,637 (466,234 637) (405918462 (60.316,175)
Trade payables 226,222,052 (226,222,052) {226,222,052) -
Dwie to related party 2,001,331 (2,001,331) (2001 331) -
Acerued expenses and 293,967,208 (293,967.208) (293.967.208) 2
other Hahilitics
Zakat puyahle 13,184,206 (13,184.206) (13,184,206) -
Emplayees' defined 66,067,876 {66,067,876) - {(66,067,876)
benefits Habilities ___— )

1,067,677,310 {LO067.677310) (941.293,259) (126.384,051)
December 31, 2018 Carrying Cuntractual Cash
In Saudi Riyal Amaount Flows Less than o year  More thin a year
Loans 517.091,331 (317,091,381) (414283 .465) {(102,807.916)
Trade payables 407,161,142 (407,161,142} (407,161,142} 3
Prue 1o related party 7,581,502 (7.581,503) 581,502)
Accrued expenses and 320,340,753 (220,340,753) (220.340,753)
other liabilitles =
Zakat payable 4,933,188 (4.933.188) (4,933,188) -
Employees' defined 56,771,528 (56,771.528) - (56,771,528)
benefits labilities

1,213,879,494 (1,213,879,494) {1,054,300,050) (159,579.444)
January 01, 2018

Carrying Contractual Cash
In Saudi Riyal Amount Flows Less thun a year  More than a year
Loans 540,781,871 (589.781.971) {(417.996,861) (171,785,110
Trade payables 268,997 507 (268.997,507) {268,997 507) =
Due 1o related party 5,855,808 (5,855, 808) (5,853.808) -
Acerued expenses and 210,176,332 (210,176,532 ) (210,176,532)
other liabilities ~
Zakat payable 4,586,069 (4.586,069) (4,586,069) -
Employees' defined 53,457,001 {53,437,001) - (53,457,001
benefits liabilities )

1,132.854.848 {1,132,854,888) (907,612,777) (225.242.111)
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32) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Commission rate risk

Commission mafte risk is the risk that the value of FAnancial instruments will fluctoate due to changss in the
provailing market commission rates. The Company Is subject to commission rate risk on ite commission bearing
Islemic short term and long term facilities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the income (o reasonsbly possible changes in commission rates,
with all other variables held constant; There is no-impact on the Company’s equity.

The sensitivity of the income is the effect of the assumed changes in commissien rates on the Company’s profit for
one year, based on the floating commission rate financial liabilifies held at 31 December:

[ncrease/(decreaze) i basis ponits Effect on tncome _ﬁ?r the year
2019 2018
SR SR
3 (233.118) (258,545)
+10 (466,235) {517.091)
=5 233,118 238,545
=10 466,235 517001

Currency risk

It is the risk that the value of o finangial instrument will Ouetuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates,
Mansgement monitors fluctuations in foreign currency exchenge rates, and believes that the Company is not
exposed to significant currency risk since the Company did not undertake sipnificant transactions in currencies
other than Saudi Rivel and US Dollars, The Saudi Rival is pegged 1o the US Dollar, accordingly, balances and
transactions in US Dallars are not considered to represent significant currency risk.

Fair Value

Fuir value represents the price thit would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 4 liability in an ordetly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the mast
advantageous market to which the Company has access al that date. The fair value, of a lishiliy reflects its non-
performance risk.

When meossuring the fadr value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as fir as possible.
Fair values are categorized into diferent levels in & fuir value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active murkets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2¢ inputs other than quoted prices included level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e [evel 3; inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data (unobservable inpuls),
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32) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair Yalue (Continued)
Value Level (1) Level (2) Lepel (3)
December 31, 2019 SR SR SR iR

Assets measured at fair value
Investment at fair value through profit and loss 21,397,727 21,397,727

Value Lewel (1) Leoel (2) Lewel €3]
Depgmber 31, 2018 SR S ER SR

Assets measured at fair value
Investment at fair value through profit and loss = - - -

The company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such a8 cash and cash equivalents,
commercial and debit accounts, commurcial credit accounts, amounts payable and other current liabilities, given
that their book velues are a ressongble approgimation of the fair value and that is largely due 1o the short-lerm
maturity dates for these sstruments.

33) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Trade receivable “expected credit losses™

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable s made when collection of the full amount 1s no
Tonger probable. For individually signifieant amounts, this estimution is performed on an individual basis. Amounts
which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and an allowance applicd
dccording to the length of time past due, based on histarical recovery rates;

At the balance sheet date, gross trade accounts receivables were SR 396,268,202 (2018: SR 429,599,276), and the
Provision for eredit losses was SR (5,951 ,043) (201 8: SR 2,744,925). Any difference between the amounts actally
collected in future periods and the amounts expected will be recognised in the statement of income.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their not realisable value: For individoally significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed
collectively and an allowance applied ascording to the Inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence,
based on historical selling prices.

Useful lives of property and equipment
The Company management determines the estimated useful lives of its property snd equipment for ealeuluting
depreciation. The estimate is determined affer considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear.
Management reviews the useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the
management believes the useful lives ditfer from previous estimates.

34) COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior yvear amounts have been reclassified 1o conform to the presentation in the dwrent yoar,
35) APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Direciors on 06 Shaaban, 1441 11 (cerrespending to March
30, 2020),
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